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The old Kentucky National Bank is situated on the southwest corner of 
Third and Main Street. It is in the same block as the old Bank of Louisville 
(National Historic Landmark ], Main Street, today, is Louisville's richest 
area of commercial nineteenth.century architecture. The old Kentucky National 
Bank is the finest Richardsonian Romanesque structure which remains on Main 
Street.

The Kentucky National Bank Building built at the opening of the last decade 
of the nineteenth century is a strong architectural: statement iji* rusticated 
limestone highlighted by smooth courses and carved details on the Main Street 
and Third Street facades. The structure rises seven stories including a 
partially exposed basement. The basement has rectangular window openings 
on botK'main^facades with a "basement" entrance in the easternmost opening on 
the"Main "Street*"facade."' "The first "story, above the basement, has; two large 
rectangular window openings with double-hung windows. The entrance is on the 
western side of the Main Street facade. It is a recessed entrance with a new 
doorway under a Romanesque round arch accented by bands of carved foliage at 
the spring of the arch and radiating voussoir-s., A smooth stonecourse, separates 
the first and second stories. The windows on the third level are pairs of 
rectangular windows above which is a smaller window.

The central opening on the third story is a large rectangular window surrounded 
by a band of foliage and separated by a column. On the Third Street facade the 
third-story, windows are separated by : a." series 6f columns* with "foliated capitals . 
A smooth course ending in carved details separates the third and fourth floors. 
The fourth story has pairs of rectangular windows topped by smaller windows on 
both main facades. A "band course underscored by dentils is between the fourth 
and fifth stories.

The upper three s. tories on both main facades are unified by, a series .of round-arched 
openings separated by pilasters. A highly plastic, foliated impost black accents 
the arches. Pairs of rectangular windows fill the arches on the top story. The 
cornice consists of a smooth frieze topped by dentils and a pierced parapet broken 
by small tourelles.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Kentucky National Bank is significant as one of three large Richard-
sonian Romanesque buildings left in the central business district of
Louisville. It was designed by one of Louisville's most prestigious
architectural firms of the last quarter of the nineteenth century,
the McDonald Brothers. The organization had the most extensive regional
practice of any Louisville firm,with commissions in the South and
Midwest.

The city of Louisville was developed on the upper side of the Falls <®f. the
Ohio and the city of Portland on the lower. River traffic was forced
to stop at Louisville to portage around the falls. The city prospered
because of this in the last decades of the eighteenth century and
became a well-established river town. This prosperity brought an
increase in population and an expansion in building. The early city
developed primarily in the vicinity of the central business district with Main
S-treet being the most important commercial area in the city until
the turn of the century.

The "Great Fire" of 1840 which, according to Casseday's History of 
Louisville, started in John Hawkins chair factory on Third Street between 
Main and Market Streets, completely destroyed what was likely the first 
group of commercial structures to be located at the southwest corner 
of Third and West Main Streets, the site of No. 300. References to the 
fire in Casseday's History and Louisville Past and Present note that 
the stores were quickly rebuilt "in less than six months".
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
City of Louisville Block 14E Lot 208. The boundry extends from a point at the corner of 

Third and Main Street 105 feet south;thence 42 feet west;thence 105 feet north to 
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In 1843, James Rudd purchased the corner site and structure from James Hughes. 
Rudd already owned a sizeable portion of the corner of the square, and had 
suffered the loss of five uninsured structures during the 1840 fire, which he 
rebuilt.

On June 13, 1889, John D. Rudd sold the current site of No. 300 West Main Street 
to the Kentucky National Bank for $51,000. During the year 1890, the present, 
palatial, seven-story Richardsonian "skycraper" of rusticated white stone was 
under construction, at a cost of $100,000. The monumental Kentucky National 
Bank Building is a product of the increased local building activity of the late 
1880 f s and 189)0's, and exemplified a period of unprecedented prosperity in 
Louisville's history.

The bank opened for business at its new home on January 12, 1891. The first 
floor was occupied by officers of the bank, and was the area where all banking 
business was transacted. The large main room was entered conveniently from Main 
Street, and was lined with tellers windows. The director's office was located 
at the rear of the first floor. According to an article in the Louisville Post, 
January 13, 1891, this room was equipped with electric bells and speaking tubes 
so that the director could communicate with the tellers, neither having to leave 
their respective places. The upper floors of the building were divided into 
suites of rooms for offices which could be rented.

The Kentucky National Bank, formerly located at Fifth and West Main Streets, 
was incorporated in 1871 with a capital of $300,000, which increased by 1880 
to 1,000,000. Bland Ballard, a Judge of the U.S. District Court, was the Bank's 
first president, and Logan C. Murray was its first cashier. v o

Only a few years later, in 1894, the new building was sold with all its furnishings' 
to the American National Bank of Louisville, which owned the property until 1915.

During the twentieth century, No. 300 has been owned by several insurance and 
finance companies.

The McDonald Brothers, leading architects in Louisville during the last quarter 
of the nineteenth century, designed the Kentucky National Bank's new structure. 
The firm was established in 1871 by Harry P. McDonald (1848-1904). He had studied 
Civil Engineering at Washington and Lee University and began work as a railroad 
engineer. Harry P. McDonald joined his younger brother Kenneth (1852-1940) in 
partnership in 1878.
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By 1881, Donald McDonald also practiced with;the firm. They gained recognition 
for their designs of public building and churches, among them: the Kentucky 
penitentiary, at Eddyville; buildings for the Southern Exposition of 1883, 
and the Baptist Theological Seminary in Louisville. In addition, the firm designed 
the Tennessee asylum at Bolivar, the state capitol of Kansas at Topeka and about 
one hundred jails in six states. After 1905, Kenneth McDonald was associated 
with Chicago-trained architect William J. Dodd. With Dodd, he completed a 
number of important Louisville structures including the Presbyterian Theological 
Seminary, and the YMCA Building at the corner of Third and Broadway.

Buildings designed with elements of the Romanesque style were quite popular in 
residential areas of the city, especially the area known today as Old Louisville, 
(National Register, February, 1975). The style was also used in smaller scale 
commercial buildings. The Richardsonian Romanesque style was most fully displayed 
in three downtown buildings, the old Louisville Trust Building at Fifth and Market 
Streets (National Register, April, 1977), the old Medical School at First and 
Chestnut Streets. (National Register July 1975 and the old Kentucky National Bank. 
The old Kentucky National Bank is more graceful and less massive that the other 
two structures and elements of the Frence Romanesque are evident. The McDonald 
Brothers also employed a similar Romanesque style in the Washington County Court 
House in Salem, Indiana. The Norton Warehouse at 622 West Main (Main Street, 
National Register March 1974) and the Firehouse #2 (National Register, September, 
1976) both exhibit similar stylistic elements in the firm's Louisville buildings 
of the period.
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